IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

CASE NO. 67,159

FRANK MARS,

Respondent.

SID J. WHITE

JUL 10 1888

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By Chief Deputy Clerky

PETITIONER'S INITIAL BRIEF ON THE MERITS

JIM SMITH Attorney General Tallahassee, Florida

SARAH B. MAYER Assistant Attorney General 111 Georgia Avenue, Suite 204 West Palm Beach, Florida 33401 Telephone (305) 837-5062

Counsel for Petitioner

PRELIMINARY STATEMENT

Petitioner was the appellant in the Fourth District Court of Appeal and the prosecution in the Criminal Division of the Circuit Court of the Fifteenth Judicial Circuit in and for Palm Beach County, Florida. Respondent was appellee and defendant respectively in those courts. In this brief the parties will be referred to as they appear before this Honorable Court.

The symbol "R" will be used to denote the record on appeal; the symbol "SR" will be used to denote the supplemental record; the symbol "SSR" will denote the second supplemental record, and "A" to denote the Petitioner's appendix attached hereto.

All emphasis in this brief is supplied by Petitioner unless otherwise indicated.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

Frank Mars was indicted by the grand jury for the alleged first-degree murder of Willie Berry, on or about January 30, 1983 (SR 1). The state narrowed the time of the offense by a statement of particulars which alleged that the crime took place between 5:00 p.m. January 29, 1983 and 12:59 a.m. January 30, 1983 (R 29-32). At trial, although the state's proof conflicted with the time period alleged in the statement of particulars, an instruction was given to the jury without objection by the state, requiring that the state prove that the offense took place within the specific time constraints set out in the statement of particulars (SSR 26-27, Appendix III). After the case was submitted to the jury, and after the jury repeatedly raised questions about the importance of the time constraints (SSR 2-5, 13, 16-17, 27-28, 54), the state sought to amend the statement of particulars to conform the allegations of time to the proof actually presented at trial (SSR 22-27, 30-34, 48-49). The state claimed a secretary's typographical error was responsible for the conflict in times (SSR 18, 22, 25, 58). Upon Mars' objection (SSR 30-31, 37-47), the court denied the state's motion to amend (SSR 49). The court stated that the defendant would clearly be prejudiced by the state's motion since the jury foreman had already indicated that the jury was ready to acquit if it was bound by the time constraints imposed by the statement of particulars (SSR 33). Mars, however, did

not move for a judgment of acquittal on the grounds that the state's proof varied from the statement of particulars (SSR 35). The jury, after being told that it would have to follow the earlier instruction mandating proof that the offense took place within the time constraints in the statement of particulars, returned a general verdict finding Mars not guilty (SSR 54-55, 60).

Subsequently, Mars was again indicted, this time for the second-degree murder, on or about January 30, 1983, of Willie Berry (R 33-34). Again, the state narrowed the time by a statement of particulars, this time to a period between 1:00 a.m. January 30, 1983 and 1:00 a.m. January 31, 1983 (R 35-38). Mars then moved to dismiss the charges on the grounds of former jeopardy because of the prior trial and acquittal (R 39-40). The court dismissed the second-degree murder charge finding that Mars had previously been placed in jeopardy for the same offense (R 25, 51-52).

The state appealed, contending that the offenses were not the same and that the effect of the allegations of different time periods set out in the statements of particulars rendered the offense in the second indictment separate and distinct from the offense in the first indictment (Appendix I).

On December 12, 1984, the Fourth District issued its opinion, reluctantly reversing the order of the trial court dismissing the subsequent charges (Appendix I). The court held that the defendant's affirmative actions of: a) seeking and

receiving a jury instruction on the materiality and binding nature of the statement of particulars and b) opposing the state's motion to amend the statement of particulars, established the materiality of the variance sufficiently to bar the appellee from later asserting the variance was insufficient to constitute a different crime (Appendix I).

On May 8, 1985, the Fourth District issued its opinion on rehearing, vacating its prior opinion and affirming the trial court's order of dismissal (Appendix II). The court stated that upon being apprised that the appellee had not requested the instruction on the binding effect of the bill of particulars, the appellee's objection to the state's motion to amend the bill of particulars was insufficient affirmative action by appellee to bar him from objecting on double jeopardy grounds to the subsequently filed charges (Appendix II).

The Fourth District certified the following question as one of great public importance requiring resolution by this court:

Does the rule of State v. Beamon permitting the filing of subsequent charges apply in a case where the defendant was acquitted by general verdict in the initial proceedings and the defendant did not seek a directed verdict of acquittal or request an instruction to the jury as to the binding nature of a bill of particulars in those proceedings?

(Appendix II)

The state timely filed its Notice of Intent to
Invoke Discretionary Jurisdiction and this appeal follows.

POINT INVOLVED ON APPEAL

WHETHER THE RULE OF STATE V. BEAMON WHICH PERMITS THE FILING OF SUBSEQUENT CHARGES APPLIES IN A CASE, LIKE THE INSTANT CASE, WHERE THE DEFENDANT WAS ACQUITTED BY GENERAL VERDICT IN THE INITIAL PROCEEDINGS WITHOUT THE DEFENDANT SEEKING A DIRECTED VERDICT OF ACQUITTAL OR REQUESTING AN INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY AS TO THE BINDING NATURE OF A BILL OF PARTICULARS IN THOSE PROCEEDINGS?

SUMMARY OF THE ARGUMENT

The decision of the Fourth District should be reversed in light of the holding of this Court in State v. Katz, 402 So.2d 1184 (Fla. 1981), that the import of the Beamon decision is that if a variance between the proof at trial and the charges brought against the defendant is substantial enough to form the basis of an acquittal, despite the defendant never having affirmatively sought the acquittal, the variance is material and may form the basis for new charges against the defendant.

ARGUMENT

THE RULE OF STATE V. BEAMON WHICH PERMITS THE FILING OF SUBSEQUENT CHARGES APPLIES IN A CASE, LIKE THE INSTANT CASE, WHERE THE DEFENDANT WAS ACQUITTED BY GENERAL VERDICT IN THE INITIAL PROCEEDINGS WITHOUT THE DEFENDANT SEEKING A DIRECTED VERDICT OF ACQUITTAL OR REQUESTING AN INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY AS TO THE BINDING NATURE OF A BILL OF PARTICULARS IN THOSE PROCEEDINGS.

The state asserts the rule of this Court in State v.

Beamon, 298 So.2d 376 (Fla. 1974), cert. denied 419 U.S. 1124,
95 S.Ct. 809, 42 L.Ed.2d 824 (1975), as interpreted by this
Court in State v. Katz, 402 So.2d 1184 (Fla. 1981) and Stang
v. State, 421 So.2d 147 (Fla. 1982) does apply to the instant
case such that it was proper for the state to refile charges
against the defendant, alleging different times in the statement of particulars. The state asserts the Fourth District
consider
and the trial court failed to/prejudice to the defendant when
the state sought to amend the bill of particulars at trial and
the Fourth District misinterpreted the holdings of this Court
in State v. Bentley, 81 So.2d 750 (Fla. 1955) and Driggers v.
State, 188 So. 118 (1939).

In the initial proceeding, the defendant was charged with first-degree murder on January 30, 1983 (SR 1). The state narrowed the time of the offense by filing a bill of particulars which alleged the crime took place between 5:00 p.m. January 29, 1983 and 12:59 a.m. on January 30, 1983 (R 29-32). The trial court of its own volition and without objection by either

party gave the standard jury instruction on the binding nature of the bill of particulars (SSR 26-27, Appendix III). The case was submitted to the jury who repeatedly raised questions about the importance of the time constraints (SSR 2-5, 13, 16-17, 27-28, 54-55). The jury foreman indicated that although they did not have doubts about the facts of the case, they had grave doubts about the time constraints within the bill of particulars and would strictly construe them unless instructed otherwise (SSR 27-28). The state sought to amend the bill of particulars (SSR 22-27, 30-34, 48-49), arguing that the defense could show no prejudice which would result from the amendment (SSR 9-10, 20-21, 22-26). The defense opposed the state's motion to amend, but never indicated how they would be prejudiced by the amendment (SSR 8-9, 30-31, 37-47). The trial court stated that the prejudice was that the defendant was "looking at a not guilty right now . . . " (SSR 33), and denied the state's motion to amend (SSR 49).

In <u>Lackos v. State</u>, 339 So.2d 217 (Fla. 1976) this Court held that a showing of prejudice to the defendant was necessary before a trial court denied the state's motion to amend an indictment or information.

In <u>Stang v. State</u>, <u>supra</u>, this Court agreed with the dissenting opinion of Judge Anstead in <u>Stang v. State</u>, 403 So.2d 542 (Fla. 4th DCA 1981), that the defendant was prejudiced by allowing the state to amend the bill of particulars after the defendant had advised the jury that the state would be

unable to prove its case on the date in question. As the defendant relied on the mistaken date as his defense, stripping him of that defense and forcing him to face the same jury with no defense left was held by this Court to be prejudicial. Stang, supra, at 150. However, this Court noted that the state could properly recharge the defendant.

In <u>Hoffman v. State</u>, 397 So.2d 288 (Fla. 1981), this Court citing <u>Lackos</u>, <u>supra</u>, held that the modern trend is to excuse technical defects which have no bearing on the substantial rights of the parties. <u>Id</u>. at 290. This Court further held that where it is clear the defense was neither misled by the incorrect date nor would be prejudiced by amendment, it is proper to allow the state to amend. <u>See also Beamon</u>, <u>supra</u>; <u>State v. Mayor</u>, 378 So.2d 1324 (Fla. 3d DCA 1980). Rule 3.140(o) Fla. R.Crim.P. (1977).

Clearly below, the defense was in no way misled by the incorrect time set out in the bill of particulars, nor did they present an alibi defense. Indeed it appears the first persons to note the time discrepancy were the jurors.

While the state recognizes it did not and cannot appeal the trial court's denial of the motion to amend as the defendant was acquitted, the state asserts that the issue of prejudice is relevant in situations where, as here, there is no prejudice to the defendant in allowing the amendment, and the defendant is acquitted due to the denial of the amendment; if no prejudice can be shown in allowing the amendment, then clearly there can be no bar to reprosecution if the amendment

is denied.

In its opinions, the Fourth District expressed concern as to whether some sort of affirmative action by the defendant to establish the materiality of the variance between the allegations and the proof was necessary before the state could recharge the defendant under proper allegations. In Bently, supra, this Court stated that reprosecution in Driggers, supra, was improper because "from all that appears in the record, the jury could have found them [the defendants] not guilty on the actual merits of the case." Driggers, at 751. Thus, the Bently court reasoned, where the defendant took advantage of the variance to obtain an acquittal, i.e., based not on the merits but only on the variance, he could not later claim the variance was not material.">Driggers, he could not later claim the variance was not material.

Below, while the defendant did not argue the variance to the jury, it is clear the jury's verdict was based on the variance and <u>not</u> on the facts/merits of the case (SSR 27-28). The defendant below did argue against allowing the state to amend the bill of particulars and specifically declined to move for a directed verdict (SSR 35-38). Indeed, defendant recognizing the "little technicality" might allow him to get off, repeatedly opposed the state's motion to amend as the variance was sufficiently material to warrant acquittal.

This Court in <u>State v. Katz</u>, <u>supra</u>, at 1186, specifically rejected the defendant's argument that since he did not affirmatively seek a judgment of acquittal based on the variance,

the <u>Beamon</u> rule could not apply to prevent him from denying its materiality when the second accurate charges were filed. This Court stated:

The import of the Beamon, Bently and Driggers decisions is that if a variance is substantial enough to form the basis for an acquittal, it must be deemed a material variance.

Id. at 1186.

Clearly the jury below acquitted the defendant due to the variance between the time alleged in the bill of particulars and the proof of time adduced at trial. Equally clearly this Court in Katz, supra, stated that where the variance was substantial enough to form the basis of an acquittal, as it was here, the variance is substantial enough to allow the state to recharge and retry the defendant adducing proof of the proper time. Thus the decision of the Fourth District must be quashed.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing argument, supported by the circumstances and authorities cited therein, Petitioner respectfully requests this Honorable Court REVERSE the decision of the Fourth District Court of Appeal.