IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

FILED SIDE SUPPLY SUPPL

STATE OF FLORIDA,

Petitioner,

vs.

FRANK MARS,

Respondent.

CASE NO. 67,159

RESPONDENT'S BRIEF ON THE MERITS

RICHARD L. JORANDBY Public Defender

MARGARET GOOD
Assistant Public Defender
15th Judicial Circuit
224 Datura Street/13th Floor
West Palm Beach, Florida 33401
(305) 837-2150

Counsel for Respondent.

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENT

Mr. Mars was acquitted of first degree murder of Willie Berry and all of the necessarily included lesser degrees of first degree murder by the jury's general verdict of not guilty in 83-650. The state does not argue that indictment 83-4125 for second degree murder of Willie Berry charged the defendant with a different offense. The constitutional protections against double jeopardy are determined only through reference to the allegations of the indictment and by considering the statutory elements of the charged offenses. Here, the defendant was acquitted on the entire count of first degree murder of Willie Berry. Therefore, he may not be reprosecuted for the same offense of second degree murder of Willie Berry when in fact only a single crime has been committed; Willie Berry could only have been murdered once.

The courts are constitutionally prohibited from looking behind a general verdict of not guilty to determine the reason for the acquittal so as to allow reprosecution for the same offense on a different theory of liability. The reason for an acquittal is immaterial in determining whether the offenses are the same for double jeopardy purposes. In assessing a defendant's claim of collateral estoppel, which arises when a defendant is prosecuted for a different offense on a factual issue which was determined in the defendant's favor at a first

trial, the courts may look to the record and evidence to determine the probable reason for an acquittal. Therefore, a second prosecution for the same offense is barred by double jeopardy even though no collateral estoppel bar exists.

Here, the state relies only on <u>State v. Katz</u>, a collateral estoppel case, to support its theory that reprosecution for the offense of murder of Willie Berry is permissible since the state claims to know the reason for the acquittal. However, the state did not provide the district court with an adequate record to overturn the trial court's ruling that reprosecution was barred by collateral estoppel, nor does the state argue that second degree murder of Willie Berry is not the same offense as first degree murder of Willie Berry, for which the defendant has been finally acquitted. Dismissal on grounds of double jeopardy and for collateral estoppel involve two separate issues.

The law allows a defendant to establish alibi as a defense to crime and to insist that time is a material element of an offense so as to entitle him to a specific judgment of acquittal on his motion (State v. Beamon, State v. Bentley and Stang v. State); but this Court has repeatedly recognized that this rule does not allow the courts to look behind a general verdict of not guilty and assume a material variance when the defendant has not relied on, established nor claimed a variance between indictment and proof as a basis for acquittal (Driggers v. State, State v. Bentley, State v. Katz).

A general verdict of acquittal on an indictment undertaking to charge murder is final and a defendant may not thereafter be reindicted and reprosecuted for the same killing. The prosecutor may not claim his own negligence in drawing an indictment was the reason for the acquittal so as to permit reprosecution. Where a defendant has been acquitted at trial, he may not be reprosecuted no matter how erroneous the legal rulings underlying the acquittal may be. The result is the same whether an acquittal on an entire count results from an erroneous court ruling limiting the state's proof or from the state's erroneously, negligently and gratuitously limiting its own proof. An acquittal on the entire count as charged in the indictment is final and the defendant may not thereafter be reprosecuted for the same offense on a different theory of liability.

ARGUMENT

POINT INVOLVED

THE RULE OF STATE v. BEAMON, WHICH PERMITS THE FILING OF SUBSEQUENT CHARGES DOES NOT APPLY IN A CASE WHERE THE DEFENDANT WAS ACQUITTED BY A GENERAL VERDICT IN THE INITIAL PROCEEDINGS AND THE DEFENDANT DID NOT SEEK A DIRECTED VERDICT OF ACQUITTAL OR REQUEST AN INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY AS TO THE BINDING NATURE OF A BILL OF PARTICULARS IN THOSE PROCEEDINGS (FOR TO PERMIT SUCH A RULE WOULD BE A VIOLATION OF DEFENDANT'S PROTECTIONS AGAINST DOUBLE JEOPARDY UNDER THE FLORIDA AND FEDERAL CONSTI-TUTIONS).

The state cannot seriously contend and in fact does not argue to this Court that the indictment 83-650 against the defendant for first degree murder of Willie Berry by shooting him with a revolver on or about January 30, 1983, (SR-1) and indictment 83-4125 against the defendant for second degree murder of Willie Berry by shooting him with a revolver on January 30, 1983, (R-33) do not charge the same offense. It is the allegations of the indictment which serve to protect the accused from another prosecution for the same offense. Raulerson v. State, 358 So.2d 826 (Fla. 1978). In Sanabria v. United States, 437 U.S. 54, 98 S.Ct. 2170, 57 L.Ed.2d 43 (1978), the Court said:

The precise manner in which an indictment is drawn cannot be ignored, because an important function of the indictment is to ensure that, 'in case any other proceedings are taken against [the defendant] for a similar offence, ... the record [will] show with accuracy to what extent he may plead a formal acquittal or conviction'.

Id., 437 U.S. at 66-67. (Citations omitted).

The test for determining whether two separate charges constitute the "same offense" for double jeopardy purposes was reiterated recently by this Court in <u>Bell v. State</u>, 437 So.2d 1057 (Fla. 1983):

If two statutory offenses have the exact, same essential constituent elements, or when one statutory offense includes all of the elements of the other, those two offenses are constitutionally 'the same offense' and a person cannot be put in jeopardy as to both such offenses unless the two offenses are based on two separate and distinct factual events.

<u>Id.</u> at 1060.

Therefore, in assessing double jeopardy claims, the courts are bound to consider only the statutory elements and not the <u>allegations</u> or <u>proof</u> in a particular case. <u>Scott v. State</u>, 453 So.2d 796 (Fla. 1984), State v. Baker, 452 So.2d 927 (Fla. 1984).

Second degree murder is a necessarily lesser-included offense of murder in the first degree, <u>Harris v. State</u>, 438 So.2d 787 (Fla. 1983), and a verdict alternative rejected by the jury's acquittal of the defendant in case 83-650. (See transcript of charge conference). Thus, when the jury returned a verdict in the defendant's favor of not guilty of first degree murder and a judgment of not guilty was entered on the entire count, "as charged in Count I of the indictment" (SR-3), the Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments of the United States Constitution and Article I, Section 9 of the Florida Constitution forever prohibited the state from again trying the defendant for any degree of

murder for unlawfully killing Willie Berry by shooting him on or about January 30, 1983. <u>Benton v. Maryland</u>, 395 U.S. 784, 89 S.Ct. 2056, 23 L.Ed.2d 707 (1969).

In <u>Sanabria</u> petitioner had been charged in a one count indictment under 18 U.S.C. Section 1955, which makes it illegal to participate in a single gambling business. Petitioner was charged with participation in a gambling business by numbers betting and horse betting. The trial judge granted a motion to exclude evidence on the numbers betting holding that this was not forbidden under the relevant state statute and subsequently granted a motion to acquit on the horse betting charge due to insufficient evidence. The Supreme Court found that even if horse betting and numbers betting had been pled in separate counts "petitioner was acquitted for insufficient proof of an element of the crime which both such counts would share — that he was 'connected with' the single gambling business" and thus this finding would bar any further prosecution for the offense of participation in that business. <u>Id.</u> at 72-73. The Court said:

We must assume that the trial court's interpretation of the indictment was erroneous. See n 13, supra. But not every erroneous interpretation of an indictment for purposes of deciding what evidence is admissible can be regarded as a "dismissal." Here the District Court did not find that the count failed to charge a necessary element of the offense, cf. Lee v. United States, 432 U.S. 23, 53 L.Ed.2d 80, 97 S.Ct. 2141 (1977); rather, it found the indictment's description of the offense too narrow to warrant the admission of certain To this extent, we believe the evidence. ruling below is properly to be characterized as an erroneous evidentiary ruling, which led to an acquittal for insufficient [437 U.S. 69]

evidence. That judgment of acquittal, however erroneous, bars further prosecution on any aspect of the count and hence bars appellate review of the trial court's error. United States v. Martin Linen Supply Co., 430 U.S., at 571, 51 L.Ed.2d 642, 97 S.Ct. 1349; Fong Foo v. United States, 369 U.S. 141, 7 L.Ed.2d 629, 82 S.Ct. 671 (1962); Green v. United States, 355 U.S., at 188, 2 L.Ed.2d 199, 78 S.Ct. 221, 77 Ohio L.Abs. 202, 61 ALR2d 1119; United States v. Ball, 163 U.S., at 671, 41 L.Ed. 300, 16 S.Ct. 1192.

<u>Sanabria v. United States</u>, 437 U.S. at 68-69. (Footnote omitted) (Emphasis supplied).

Here, the Constitution required a determination whether the indictment for second degree murder of Willie Berry charged the same offense as the first indictment for first degree murder of Willie Berry by examining the statutory elements. In <u>Sanabria v.</u> United States, supra, the Court said:

It is Congress, and not the prosecution, which establishes and defines offenses. Few, if any, limitations are imposed by the Double Jeopardy Clause on the legislative power to define offenses. Brown v. Ohio, 432 U.S. 161, 165, 97 S.Ct. 2221, 53 L.Ed.2d 187 (1977). But once Congress has defined a statutory offense by its prescription of the 'allowable unit of prosecution,' (citations omitted), that prescription determines the scope of protection afforded by a prior conviction or acquittal. Whether a particular course of conduct involves one or more distinct 'offenses' under the statute depends on this congressional choice.

Id., 436 U.S. at 69-70 (Emphasis supplied).

Whether the charge of second degree murder of Willie Berry is the same offense for which the defendant was acquitted on the first degree murder indictment of Willie Berry cannot be analyzed

under the "same evidence" test because "only a single violation of a single statute is at issue here." Sanabria v. United

States, supra, at footnote 24. Willie Berry could only have been murdered once and any unlawful killing of Willie Berry would constitute but a single violation of the homicide statute in whatever degree. Where a single crime has been committed, the prosecution may not fragment what is in fact a single crime into its components or avoid the limitations of the Double Jeopardy Clause by the simple expedient of dividing a single crime into a series of temporal or spatial units. See Sanabria v. United States, 437 U.S. at 72 and Brown v. Ohio, 432 U.S. 161,169, 97 S.Ct. 221, 53 L.Ed.2d 187 (1977).

Not once in its brief to this Court does the state contend that the indictment in 83-4125 did not charge the same offense as the indictment in 83-650. The state is obviously aware that the second indictment charged the same offense as the first indictment, for in the circuit court the state candidly referred to case 83-4125 as a "refiling," that the defendant had been "reindicted on the charge of Second Degree Murder" (R-2,3).

The only theory the state advances to this Court as a reason why the defendant may be retried for the same offense of murder of Willie Berry is its contention that the jury verdict is based solely on a material variance and that if it can be discerned that the variance is the reason for an acquittal, then the defendant may be retried for the same offense under a different statement of particulars (Petitioner's Brief at page 10-11). As

the defendant will demonstrate, the factual assumptions underlying this argument are incorrect and not supported by the appellate record nor do the cases of State v. Beamon, 298 So.2d 376 (Fla. 1974) and State v. Katz, 402 So.2d 1184 (Fla. 1981), allow the state or the courts to attack the finality of a jury verdict of acquittal and attempt to ascertain or review the reasons for the acquittal so as to allow reprosecution for the same offense. Stang v. State, 421 So.2d 147 (Fla. 1982), State v. Katz, suppra, are not applicable to the facts of this case where the defendant was found not guilty by a general verdict.

First of all, those cases involve offenses charged by way of informations and not by indictments. The statement of particulars could not amend or define the offense of capital murder on which the Grand Jury indicted the defendant and on which the defendant was placed in jeopardy and then acquitted. Both the Florida and Federal Constitutions require that no person shall be held to answer or tried for a capital crime except upon an indictment returned by a Grand Jury. Article I, Section 15, Florida Constitution; Fifth and Fourteenth Amendments, United States Constitution. Only a Grand Jury, not the prosecutor, has the authority to alter an indictment. Perez v. State, 371 So.2d 714 (Fla. 2d DCA 1979), Russell v. State, 349 So.2d 1224 (Fla. 2d DCA 1977), Pickeron v. State, 94 Fla. 268, 113 So. 707 (1927). Not even a Grand Jury can amend an indictment to charge an additional or different offense; it may only alter an indictment

by filing a new one after an independent examination of the evidence, even though a prior indictment is pending. Smith v. State, 424 So.2d 726,729 (Fla. 1983). Consequently, neither Stang, Katz or Beamon mention the constitutional limitations which would prohibit a prosecutor from altering or amending an indictment and do not clarify or amend the double jeopardy protections guaranteed to the defendant when he was acquitted of the crime charged under the protections of the allegations of the indictment.

The state's argument also ignores critical differences between a jury's general verdict of not guilty and a judgment of acquittal or directed verdict upon the defendant's motion on specific grounds of a fatal variance as occurred in State v.
Beamon and State v.
Bentley, 81 So.2d 750 (Fla. 1955), or upon the judge's specific order of dismissal on the grounds of a fatal variance even though not requested by the defendant as occurred in State v. Katz. 1

In <u>State v. Beamon</u>, <u>supra</u>, the defendant obtained a judgment of acquittal from the judge on the ground that there was a material variance between the proof and the date alleged in the

1

It is important to note that none of the cases cited by the state deal with reprosecution for any homicide offense. Unlike burglary, robbery or larceny offenses which may occur more than once, a charge of murder of a particularly named individual can only be a single offense. That the state limited its proof under the indictment does not render the jury's verdict any less of an acquittal on the "offense" charged. Sanabria, 437 U.S. at 72.

bill of particulars. The trial judge granted the motion and declared the defendant "not guilty of the crime of robbery on November 24, 1972." Id. at 378. This specific judgment of acquittal did not bar a subsequent prosecution for robbery on November 26. The rule of State v. Beamon protects a defendant's right to a establish an alibi to an accusation of crime and to insist that time is a material element of the offense entitling him to a specific judgment of acquittal on that ground, but Beamon then prohibits the defendant from assuming an inconsistent position in asserting double jeopardy protections when a second charge is filed to meet the fatal variance.

Beamon, Bentley and Katz all deal with the trial court's granting a judgment of acquittal on specific grounds of a fatal variance. Those cases do not purport to look behind a jury's general verdict of not guilty nor to limit a defendant's double jeopardy protections by assumptions of a specific reason for the jury's verdict so as to permit reprosecution for the same offense on a different theory of liability. In fact, both Bentley and Katz recognized the situations involved in those cases are completely distinguishable from an acquittal entered on a jury's general verdict of not guilty. In State v. Katz, this Court said:

In State v. Bentley, 81 So.2d 750 (Fla. 1955), this Court distinguished situations such as the ones at bar from one in which the defendants went to trial on the first charge and were acquitted by a jury in spite of a variance between the pleading (larceny of a cow) and proof (larceny of a calf). See Driggers v. State, 137 Fla. 182, 188 So. 118 (1939). In

the latter instance "from all that appears in the record, the jury could have found [the defendants] not guilty on the actual merits of the case." 81 So.2d at 751. See also LeRea v. Cochran, 115 So.2d 545 (Fla. 1959), cert. denied, 362 U.S. 946, 80 S.Ct. 867, 4 L.Ed.2d 865 (1960).

State v. Katz, 402 So.2d at 1186. (Emphasis supplied).

Likewise, in State v. Bentley, the defendants moved for and were granted a directed verdict of acquittal on the grounds that there was a material variance between the allegation of larceny of a cow and proof of larceny of a bull. Having done so, they could not then contend that the variance was not material and that the two offenses charged were in actuality one and the same offense. Driggers v. State, 137 Fla. 182, 188 So. 118 (1939), was distinguished because there "the defendants did not, by motion for a directed verdict or other affirmative action, undertake to establish in the first trial the materiality of the variance." State v. Bentley, 81 So.2d at 750.

Before this Court, the state in no way asserts that Mr. Mars took any affirmative action to establish a material variance in the trial of 83-650. Such a position would be clearly untenable in any event. Here Mr. Mars did nothing but let the state try its case. The defendant did not establish nor claim a material variance at trial, he did not request nor demand a statement of particulars; it was filed gratuitously by the state in order to demand notice of alibi under Florida Rule of Criminal Procedure 3.200 (R-29-32). He did not move for a judgment of acquittal on the statement of particulars. The defendant did not request a

charge to the jury on the statement of particulars but claimed excusable or justifiable use of force (see charge conference) and did not assert alibi as a defense. The defendant did oppose a state's tardy motion to amend the statement of particulars made after the jury had been deliberating its verdict for over two hours. But the defendant's opposition to the motion can hardly constitute "affirmative action" to "establish" a "material variance" for if there were a material variance, it had long since been established by the state without any assistance, action, demand or request by the defendant that the state limit its proof.

The state's contention before this Court that it knows the reason the jury acquitted (Petitioner's Brief 10-11) is belied by the record. The state clearly does not know the reason for acquittal, as it moved to interview the jurors in the trial court in order to ascertain the jury's reasoning to support its "refiling" of a charge of second degree murder (R-2). That motion was denied (R-7,27).

Since Mr. Mars did not affirmatively establish a material variance nor take inconsistent positions which would preclude a claim of double jeopardy as in <u>State v. Beamon</u>, the state relies solely on Katz' interpretation of <u>Beamon</u> to justify its attempts to reprosecute Mr. Mars for the same offense of murder of Willie Berry (Petitioner's Brief at 10-11). In <u>Katz</u>, the defendant was charged with burglary of a 1977 Buick but the evidence showed burglary of a 1975 Chevrolet. When Katz moved to dismiss the

charges at the close of the evidence, the trial judge granted the motion because of a discrepancy between a 1975 Chevrolet and a 1977 Buick, which grounds were not asserted by Katz. <u>Katz</u> reviews this dismissal of an information solely on the basis of collateral estoppel under <u>Ashe v. Swenson</u>, 397 U.S. 436, 90 S.Ct. 1189, 25 L.Ed.2d 469 (1970). Katz' claim of collateral estoppel was denied because the factual issue of whether the defendant stole anything else but a 1977 Buick had not been resolved in Katz' favor. Therefore, the state was not collaterally estopped from litigating the issue of whether Katz stole a 1975 Chevrolet on a new information.

There was no question in <u>Katz</u> but that the two offenses, burglary of a 1975 Chevrolet and burglary of 1977 Buick, were different offenses just as the robbery of a poker player Knight was a different offense from the robbery of a separate poker player Roberts in <u>Ashe v. Swenson</u>. The principle of collateral estoppel embodied in the Fifth Amendment guarantee against double jeopardy arises when the prosecution seeks to try a defendant on a different offense where the issue to be litigated by that prosecution has been resolved in the defendant's favor by a previous judgment of acquittal. Therefore, a claim of collateral estoppel requires a court to "examine the record of a prior proceeding, taking into account the pleadings, evidence, charge, and other relevant matter, and conclude whether a rational jury

could have grounded its verdict upon an issue other than that which the defendant seeks to foreclose from consideration." Id., 397 U.S. at 441, 90 S.Ct. at 1194.

Since <u>Katz</u> involved a collateral estoppel dismissal of an information filed subsequent to an acquittal for a different offense, it was permissible for this Court to evaluate the basis of the acquittal under the standard of <u>Ashe v. Swenson</u>. That situation is entirely different than the case at bar because the state, as appellant, did not provide a sufficient appellate record to overturn the trial court's finding of collateral estoppel, <u>State v. Yero</u>, 377 So.2d 45 (Fla. 3d DCA 1979), <u>Merrit v. Williams</u>, 295 So.2d 310 (Fla. 1st DCA 1974), <u>Simpson v. Florida</u>, 403 U.S. 384, 91 S.Ct. 1801, 29 L.Ed.2d 549 (1971), nor does the state dispute a double jeopardy bar to reprosecution for the same offense.

Where dismissal of a subsequent indictment is grounded solely on the defendant's prior acquittal for the same offense, the reasons for the acquittal are immaterial; "Where a defendant has been acquitted at trial he may not be retried on the same offense, even if the legal rulings underlying the acquittal were erroneous." Sanabria v. United States, 437 U.S. 54,64 (1978).²

2

A defendant's acquittal for a single criminal offense stands as a bar in jeopardy to reprosecution for the same offense even if there is no collateral estoppel bar to a prosecution of the defendant for a different offense. Sanabria v. United States, 397 U.S. at 73, footnote 31.

See also Fong Foo v. United States, 369 U.S. 142, 82 S.Ct. 671 (1962). It is without constitutional significance whether a court enters a judgment of acquittal rather than directing a jury to bring a verdict of acquittal or giving it erroneous instructions that result in an acquittal. United States v. Martin Linen Supply Co., 430 U.S. 564,567, footnote 5, 573, 97 S.Ct. 1341, 51 L.Ed.2d 642 (1977); United States v. Sisson, 399 U.S. 267,290, 90 S.Ct. 2117, 26 L.Ed.2d 608 (1970).

A verdict of acquittal on the issue of guilt or innocence is, of course, absolutely final. Bullington v. Missouri, 451 U.S. 430, 101 S.Ct. 1852, 68 L.Ed.2d 270 (1981). The Double Jeopardy guarantee protects a man who has been acquitted from having to "run the gantlet" twice. Green v. United States, 355 U.S. 184,190, 78 S.Ct. 221, 2 L.Ed.2d 199 (1957). The underlying idea to this fundamental constitutional quarantee is that the "State with all its resources and power should not be allowed to make repeated attempts to convict an individual for an alleged offense, thereby subjecting him to embarrassment, expense and ordeal and compelling him to live in a continued state of anxiety and insecurity, as well as enhancing the possibility that even though innocent he may be found guilty." Green v. United States, 355 at 187-188. Those fundamental principles would clearly be violated if the state were given another chance to place the defendant on trial for the murder of Willie Berry, in spite of his acquittal by the jury for that offense.

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